

Image designed by Becky Collins

Academic Advising: Nurturing the Will to Learn

Conference Brochure

Strand A: Effective practice in academic advising
Strand B: (i) Leading academic advising and
(ii) Setting boundaries and working with professional services
Strand C: Training, professional confidence, and roles
Strand D: Content for advising tutorials

Thursday 19 June 2025

Contents

	Page
Keynote address, 9.45 - 10.30 am	
Reaffirming the core purpose(s) of academic advising: international perspectives in disruptive times	3
Papers, 10.35 - 10.55 am	
Strand A: Bridging pedagogy and pastoral care: an integrated advising model for online computer science education	4
Strand B: Leadership in personal tutoring and advising practices across the higher education sector	າ 5
Strand C: Strengthening academic advising through professional development: lessons from a global south context	6
Strand D: What students want from higher education teaching interactions, and why - relationship with the academic advisor	8
Workshops, 11.10 am - 12.00 pm	
Strand B: The PASS tutorial framework as an exemplar for standardising academic advising and improving academic advisor engagement	10
Strand C: Mental Health First Aid (MFHA) for academic advisors: what role does/can MHFA play in academic advising?	10
Strand D: BEE timeline: integrating academic advising with employability skills	12
Panel discussion, 12.05 - 12.35 pm	
Academic advising in 2025: practice, research, and theory	13
Round tables, 1.10 - 2.00 pm	
Strand A: Transforming advising practices: relational tutoring for employability beyond the classroom	15
Strand B: Signposting is only the start: effective referrals for successful student outcomes	16
Strand C: Fostering effective academic advising relationships with adults: bridging the relational space with colleague learners	17
Free Form, 2.05 - 2.55 pm	
Strand A: Integrating Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) into academic advising for purposeful career development	19
Strand B: Working with inclusive support to support students with Dyslexia/Neurodiversity	20
Strand C: How might the Academic Advising (AA)/Personal Tutor role purposefully help student nurses develop the required professional values and associated behaviours in preparation for future employment?	22
Strand D: Artificial intelligence and academic advising	24
Papers and PechaKucha, 3.05 - 3.25 pm	
Strand A: Purposeful academic advising practices: a student developmental offering (Paper)	25
Strand B: Bridging the awarding gaps: effective academic advising practices to address persistent awarding disparities (Paper)	26
Strand C: Teaching tutors: incorporating a module on academic advising within an MA Learning and Teaching in Higher Education programme (Paper)	27
Strand D: What, where, and when is academic advising? (PechaKucha)	27
Plenary and closing address, 3.30 - 4.00 pm	
Cultivating success: the spectrum of integrated advising	29
Acknowledgements	30

Disclaimer: this brochure was accurate at the time of production but may be subject to change.

Reaffirming the core purpose(s) of academic advising: international perspectives in disruptive times

In these most disruptive of times, this conference provides the opportunity to step back to identify and critically reflect on the core purpose(s) of academic advising. Offering international perspectives, our joint keynote will consider complexity – and the urgent need for action – related to contemporary themes of relevance, such as: different models of advising, including curriculum embedding; the challenges of supporting connections and the well-being of students (and staff); and, advising in the face of AI. We will explore the tensions inherent in the academic advising remit, particularly the desire for professionalising and standardising while also being responsive to the diverse needs of individual students and communities across the lifecycle. We will frame academic advising as fundamentally about purposeful meaning-making and agency, for both students and advisors. And we will emphasize the shared responsibility of academic advising to make a positive difference in the education of students and in the communities we serve through our collective work.



Professor Peter Felten, Executive Director of the Center for Engaged Learning, Professor of History, and Assistant Provost for Teaching and Learning at Elon University, North Carolina, USA

Professor Peter Felten is Professor of History, Executive Director of the Center for Engaged Learning, and Assistant Provost for Teaching and Learning at Elon University, US. He has published seven books about undergraduate education, including Connections are Everything: A College Student's Guide to Relationship-Rich Education (Johns Hopkins University Press, 2023) co-authored by Isis Artze-Vega, Leo Lambert, and Oscar Miranda Tapia – with an open access online version free to all readers. His next book, The SoTL Guide: (Re)Orienting the Scholarship of Teaching and Learning, is co-authored by Katarina Mårtensson and Nancy Chick, and will be published (open access) in October. He is on the Advisory Board of the National Survey of Student Engagement (NSSE) and is a Fellow of the Gardner Institute.



Professor Sally Kift, PFHEA, FAAL, ALTF, Higher Education Consultant, President, Australian Learning and Teaching Fellows (ALTF), Vice Chancellor's Strategic Fellow, Victoria University, and Honorary Professor: University of Southern Queensland

Professor Sally Kift is a Principal Fellow of the Higher Education Academy (PFHEA), a Fellow of the Australian Academy of Law (FAAL), and President of the Australian Learning and Teaching Fellows (ALTF). She has held several university leadership positions, including as Deputy Vice-Chancellor (Academic) at James Cook University. Sally is a national Teaching Award winner, a national Program Award winner and a national Senior Teaching Fellow on the First Year Experience. In 2010, she was appointed an Australian Discipline Scholar in Law. In 2017, Sally received an Australian University Career Achievement Award for her contribution to Australian higher education. Since 2017, Sally has been working as an independent higher education consultant.

Strand A: Bridging pedagogy and pastoral care: an integrated advising model for online computer science education

Dr Juan Wang, FHEA, and Dr Tangming Yuan, SFHEA, University of York

Academic advising in online higher education must evolve beyond administrative functions to address holistic student needs. This study examines the integration of academic advising with subject-specific tutoring through a case study of the Algorithms and Data Structures (ADS) module in the University of York's online MSc in Computer Science. The research responds to critical challenges in virtual learning environments, including student isolation, diverse academic backgrounds, and the limitations of text-based communication.

The study developed an innovative advising model combining 1) Structured academic scaffolding: weekly announcements with step-by-step study methods and curated FAQs addressing coding setup and time management challenges; 2) Personalized pastoral support: empathetic responses to individual circumstances (e.g., family emergencies) and tailored guidance for non-computing background students; and 3) Active feedback integration: assignment critiques emphasising problem-solving processes alongside emotional encouragement.

Methodologically, the research employed qualitative analysis of feedback from 50+ students across three cohorts, comparative academic performance tracking between students who adopted versus those who didn't adopt the advised methods, and document analysis of advising interactions (emails, forum posts, feedback comments).

Key findings revealed 1) Academic impact: a consistent pattern of higher distinction rates among advised students; 2) Transformative outcomes: multiple career-changers achieved distinctions, attributing success to the structured support; 3) Psychological benefits: recurrent themes in student testimonials highlighted reduced anxiety and increased self-efficacy through the integrated support approach.

This research contributes a replicable framework demonstrating how subject tutors can effectively deliver academic advising, structured pedagogical support enhances both cognitive and affective learning dimensions, and proactive interventions bridge equity gaps for non-traditional learners.

The model offers actionable insights for online STEM education, advocating for advising models that seamlessly blend disciplinary expertise with holistic student support.

References:

Aldiab, A., et al. (2019). "Utilization of Learning Management Systems (LMSs) in higher education system: A case review for Saudi Arabia." Energy Procedia 160: 731-737.

Alexander, R. (2020), A dialogic teaching companion, Routledge.

Almond, N. (2020). "Curriculum coherence: How best to do it." The ResearchED Guide to: The curriculum: 59-69.

Almulla, M. A. and M. M. Alamri (2021). "Using conceptual mapping for learning to affect students' motivation and academic achievement." Sustainability 13(7): 4029.

Black, P. and D. Wiliam (1998). Inside the black box: Raising standards through classroom assessment, Granada Learning.

Boyd, M. P. and W. C. Markarian (2011). "Dialogic teaching: Talk in service of a dialogic stance." Language and education 25(6): 515-534.

Chung, E. Y.-h. (2019). "Facilitating learning of community-based rehabilitation through problem-based learning in higher education." BMC Medical Education 19(1): 1-14.

Duffy, K. (2013). "Providing constructive feedback to students during mentoring." Nursing Standard (through 2013) 27(31): 50.

Firtel, K. B. (1998). "Plain English: A reappraisal of the intended audience of disclosure under the Securities Act of 1933." S. Cal. L. Rev. 72: 851.

Fong, C. J., et al. (2018). "When feedback signals failure but offers hope for improvement: A process model of constructive criticism." Thinking Skills and Creativity 30: 42-53.

Gillett-Swan, J. (2017). "The challenges of online learning: Supporting and engaging the isolated learner." Journal of Learning Design 10(1): 20-30.

Gillies, R. M. (2016). "Cooperative learning: Review of research and practice." Australian Journal of Teacher Education (Online) 41(3): 39-54.

Hardman, J. (2008). "Researching pedagogy: An activity theory approach." Journal of Education 45(1): 65-95.

Hussey, T. and P. Smith (2003). "The uses of learning outcomes." Teaching in higher education 8(3): 357-368.

Jakubovic, J., et al. (2023). "Technical Dimensions of Programming Systems." arXiv preprint arXiv:2302.10003.

Lefroy, J., et al. (2015). "Guidelines: the do's, don'ts and don't knows of feedback for clinical education." Perspectives on medical education 4: 284-299.

Li, J., et al. (2020). "Using feedback to promote student participation in online learning programs: Evidence from a quasi-experimental study." Educational Technology Research and Development 68: 485-510.

Ludwig-Hardman, S. and J. C. Dunlap (2003). "Learner support services for online students: Scaffolding for success." International Review of Research in Open and Distributed Learning 4(1): 1-15.

Lyle, S. (2008). "Dialogic teaching: Discussing theoretical contexts and reviewing evidence from classroom practice." Language and education 22(3): 222-240.

Michel, N., et al. (2009). "Active versus passive teaching styles: An empirical study of student learning outcomes." Human resource development quarterly 20(4): 397-418.

Minhas, P. S., et al. (2012). "The effects of passive and active learning on student preference and performance in an undergraduate basic science course." Anatomical sciences education 5(4): 200-207.

O'Neill, G. (2015). Curriculum design in higher education: Theory to practice, University College Dublin. Teaching and Learning.

Schartel, S. A. (2012). "Giving feedback—An integral part of education." Best practice & research Clinical anaesthesiology 26(1): 77-87.

Srivatanakul, T. (2022). "Emerging from the pandemic: instructor reflections and students' perceptions on an introductory programming course in blended learning." Education and Information Technologies: 1-23.

Teo, P. (2019). "Teaching for the 21st century: A case for dialogic pedagogy." Learning, Culture and Social Interaction 21: 170-178.

Underwood, J. S. and A. P. Tregidgo (2006). "Improving student writing through effective feedback: Best practices and recommendations." Journal of Teaching Writing 22(2): 73-98.

University of York. (2023). "Statement of approach-decolonising and diversifying the curriculum" [Online]. Available at:

https://www.york.ac.uk/staff/teaching/inclusive-learning/ourcurrentwork/decolonisinganddiversifyingthe curriculum/statementofapproach-decolonisinganddiversifyingthecurriculum/ [Accessed 17 May 2023]. Wood, D. F. (2003). "Problem based learning." Bmj 326(7384): 328-330.

Strand B: Leadership in personal tutoring and advising practices across the higher education sector

Dr Gary Jones, SFHEA, University of Winchester, Associate Professor Helen Tidy, SFHEA, and Dr Joanne Irving-Walton, PFHEA, Teesside University

Personal tutoring and academic advising are recognised as key elements in supporting and enabling students to succeed during their educational journey; they assist students academically and provide pastoral and professional support (Adams et al., 2023). In the current higher education climate, where there is increased pressure on academic and support staff, personal tutoring is an area that has the potential to be overlooked. However, as noted in Advance HE's (2024) Framework for Student Access, Retention, Attainment and

Papers, 10.35 - 10.55 am

Progression (Essential Framework for Enhancing Student Success), academic and pastoral support are crucial for securing retention and attainment.

The UKAT (United Kingdom Advising and Tutoring Association) RLA's (Recognised Leaders in Advising) collaborated on a research project that examined the current landscape of personal tutoring and its leadership within the UK. A survey on personal tutoring was distributed throughout the sector to gain insight into the diverse range of institutional models for personal tutoring and academic advising currently in practice. Additionally, it enabled the researchers to understand the reach, value, and impact of personal tutoring and academic advising, as well as how these can be harnessed to ensure quality, depth, and rigour in provision. This is particularly crucial when higher education faces significant resource challenges.

This presentation will share the initial findings of this research, providing insights into leadership in personal tutoring and advising practices across the sector.

References:

Adams, K., Hussain, N., Farrow, M. & Jones, S. (2024). Personal academic tutors (PATs): A student perspective. Currents in Pharmacy Teaching and Learning, 16, pp.100-108.

ADVANCE HE (2024) Framework for student access, retention, attainment and progression. Available at

https://www.advance-he.ac.uk/knowledge-hub/framework-student-access-retention-attainment-and-progression [Accessed 27 February 2025].

Strand C: Strengthening academic advising through professional development: lessons from a global south context

Dr Jessica Versfeld, HPCSA, University of Pretoria, and Associate Professor Curwyn Mapaling, University of Johannesburg, South Africa

Academic advising plays a pivotal role in promoting student success in higher education, particularly within contexts of inequality and historical injustice. This qualitative study, conducted at a South African university, explores the lived experiences of four academic advisors within an engineering faculty, identifying enablers and constraints to effective practice. Using a socio-ecological lens, findings highlight critical dynamics across the microsystem (individual characteristics such as resilience and passion), mesosystem (interdepartmental collaboration and institutional culture), and macrosystem (national policy and socio-economic challenges).

While the study focuses on engineering, many of the challenges and opportunities identified are applicable across disciplines. The findings emphasise that academic advising is a relational, context-sensitive practice shaped by both personal advisor attributes and the institutional environment. The value of professional development emerged strongly: advisors who completed structured training reported enhanced confidence, communication skills, and role clarity. These findings align with international literature advocating for recognition of advising as a professional practice grounded in human, social, and decisional capital.

Importantly, the study argues that professional development in advising must move beyond a transactional model. Instead, training programmes should be holistic - fostering resilience, strengthening emotional labour capacities, and promoting reflective practice. Although developed in an engineering setting, these principles are transferable to advising in

non-engineering programmes, where advisors similarly require the confidence to navigate complex student realities, institutional fragmentation, and broader social pressures.

The study contributes to global academic advising discourse by providing contextually grounded insights from the Global South—a region often underrepresented in mainstream advising literature. It highlights how lessons from structurally unequal settings can offer fresh perspectives on advisor wellbeing, institutional support, and role recognition.

This presentation will explore implications for institutional policy and professional development practices in higher education. It invites a discussion on how institutions can cultivate professional confidence among advisors through recognition, training, and systems-level change.

References:

Assiri, A., Al-Malaise, A. and Brdesee, H. (2020) 'From traditional to intelligent academic advising: A systematic literature review of e-academic advising', International Journal of Advanced Computer Science and Applications, 11, p. 110467. doi: 10.14569/IJACSA.2020.0110467.

Badat, S. (2010). The challenges of transformation in higher education and training institutions in South Africa. Available at: https://api.semanticscholar.org/CorpusID:177755 [Accessed: 1 February 2024].

Bronfenbrenner, U. (1979). The ecology of human development: Experiments by nature and design. Cambridge, MA: Harvard University Press.

Clarke, V. and Braun, V. (2013). Successful qualitative research: A practical guide for beginners. London: SAGE Publications.

Creamer, E. and Scott, D. (2000) 'Assessing individual advisor effectiveness', in Academic advising: A comprehensive handbook. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass, p. 9.

Creswell, J.W. and Poth, C.N. (2018). Qualitative inquiry and research design: Choosing among five approaches. 4th edn. London: SAGE Publications Inc.

de Klerk, D. (2021) 'Making known the real: An exploration of academic advising practices in a South African higher education context', Journal of Student Affairs in Africa, 9, pp. 101–121. doi: 10.24085/jsaa.v9i2.3702.

de Klerk, D. (2023) 'Establishing a baseline: A social realist perspective on academic advising at a South African university prior to COVID-19', South African Journal of Higher Education, 37, pp. 62–81. doi: 10.20853/37-4-5342.

de Klerk, D. (2024) 'Academic advising during emergency remote teaching and learning: A South African higher education perspective', Scholarship of Teaching and Learning in the South, 6, pp. 95–111. doi: 10.36615/sotls.v6i1.210.

Deci, E. and Ryan, R. (2012) 'Self-determination theory in health care and its relations to motivational interviewing: A few comments', International Journal of Behavioral Nutrition and Physical Activity, 9, p. 24. doi: 10.1186/1479-5868-9-24.

Fisher, G. (2011.) Improving throughput in the engineering bachelor's degree. Engineering Council of South Africa. Available at:

https://www.ecsa.co.za/about/pdfs/091211 ECSA Throughput Report.pdf [Accessed: 9 December 2011].

Francis, D. and Webster, E. (2019) 'Poverty and inequality in South Africa: Critical reflections', Development Southern Africa, 36, pp. 788–802. doi: 10.1080/0376835X.2019.1666703. Govender, P. (2018) 'Joint effort needed to fix university dropout rate', TimesLIVE. Available at: https://www.timeslive.co.za/sunday-times/news/2018-05-26-joint-effort-needed-to-fix-university-dropout-rate/ [Accessed: 11 April 2024].

Gu, Q. (2018) '(Re)conceptualising teacher resilience: A social-ecological approach to understanding teachers' professional worlds', Research in Education: Concepts, Contexts, and Connections, 18, pp. 13–33. doi: 10.1007/978-3-319-76690-4_2.

Habley, W., Bloom, J., and Robbins, S. (2012). Increasing persistence: Research-based strategies for college student success. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass.

Hargreaves, A. and Fullan, M. (2012). Professional capital: Transforming teaching in every school. New York, NY: Teachers College Press.

He, Y., Hutson, B., Bloom, J. and Cuevas, A. (2020) 'Advisor beliefs, practices, and perceptions of well-being: Development of an advisor self-evaluation instrument', NACADA Journal, 40, pp. 23–35. doi: 10.12930/NACADA-18-02.

Israel, M. and Hay, I. (2006) Research ethics for social scientists: Between ethical conduct and regulatory compliance. London: SAGE.

Kuh, G., Kinzie, J., Buckley, J.A., Bridges, B.K. and Hayek, J.C. (2006). What matters to student success: A review of the literature. Washington, DC: National Postsecondary Education Cooperative. Kuhn, T., Gordon, V. and Webber, J. (2006) 'The advising and counseling continuum: Triggers for

referral', NACADA Journal, 26, pp. 24-31. doi: 10.12930/0271-9517-26.1.24.

Light, A. (2001) 'In-school work experience and the returns to schooling', Journal of Labor Economics, 19, pp. 65–93. doi: 10.1086/209980.

Looker, P. (2018) 'Negotiating learning and identity in higher education: Access, persistence, and retention', Scholarship of Teaching and Learning in the South, 2, pp. 92–94. doi: 10.36615/sotls.v2i2.81.

Loucif, S., Gassoumi, L. and Negreiros, J. (2020) 'Considering students' abilities in the academic advising process', Education Sciences, 10, pp. 1–21. doi: 10.3390/educsci10090254.

Lowenstein, M. (2005) 'If advising is teaching, what do advisors teach?', NACADA Journal, 25, pp. 65–73. doi: 10.12930/0271-9517-25.2.65.

Mansfield, C. and Beltman, S. (2019) 'Promoting resilience for teachers: Pre-service and in-service professional learning', Australian Educational Researcher, 46, pp. 583–588. doi: 10.1007/s13384-019-00347-x.

Morrow, W.E. (2009). Bounds of democracy: Epistemological access in higher education. Pretoria: HSRC Press.

NACADA (2017.) The global community for academic advising: NACADA academic advising core competencies model. Available at:

https://www.nacada.ksu.edu/Resources/Pillars/CoreCompetencies.aspx [Accessed: 1 February 2024]. Nowell, L., Norris, J., White, D. and Moules, N. (2017) 'Thematic analysis', International Journal of Qualitative Methods, 16, p. 160940691773384. doi: 10.1177/1609406917733847.

Oyerinde, O. and Dienga, A. (2023) 'Immediate and long-term impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on South African higher education', Tuning Journal of Higher Education, 11, pp. 295–326. doi: 10.18543/tjhe.2277.

Patton, M.Q. (2014). Qualitative research and evaluation methods. 4th edn. London: SAGE.

Strand D: What students want from higher education teaching interactions, and why relationship with the academic advisor

Kate Maguire, FHEA, Oxford Brookes University

This paper is a subsection of doctoral research currently ongoing, which seeks to enhance understanding of what students want from their higher education (HE) teaching interactions, and why. An early output of the analysis is the identification of nine key themes that clarify what students want to happen in teaching situations. One of these themes is connection, of which a relationship with the student's academic advisor is a sub-theme. The reasons for wanting this relationship include: to enhance learning, drive assessment success, improve wellbeing, support personal development, and receive personalised support. Student views on these points are explored, and challenges around consistency of academic advising and experience required by academic advisors are identified.

The key objective of the research is to empirically investigate students' understanding of value in HE teaching processes, with value defined as the student's perception of what they want to happen in a teaching situation in order to accomplish their desired objectives. The research aims to contribute to the body of knowledge on lean higher education (LHE). It adopts Womack and Jones' (2003) five lean principles as the foundation of a lean approach, focusing specifically on the first principle: precisely specify value by specific product. The selected definition of value is aligned with means-end theory (Gutman,1982), which

Papers, 10.35 - 10.55 am

underpins this research and has informed the methodology, a laddering approach (Reynolds and Gutman, 1988).

Twenty-three laddering interviews have been conducted with final year business students. A laddering interview involves moving the participant through different levels of abstraction, in this case starting with discussing what the students want to happen in teaching interactions, then progressing to more probing questions to determine the links between those happenings, anticipated consequences, and higher-level objectives. Teaching interactions explored included lectures, seminars, and one-on-one interactions. Coding of the interview transcripts, although complex and iterative, is mostly complete. Codes have been assigned at three different levels: what students want to happen, what consequences they are looking to achieve from those happenings, and what objectives those consequences will help them address. Relationships have been identified between elements at the increasing levels of abstraction, analysis of these relationships is currently ongoing.

References:

Gutman, J. (1982). A means-end chain model based on consumer categorization processes. Journal of Marketing, 46(2), 60–72

Reynolds, T., & Gutman, J. (1988). Laddering Theory, Method, Analysis, and Interpretation. Journal of Advertising Research, 28(1), 11–31.

Womack, J & Jones D (2003), Lean Thinking: Banish Waste and Create Wealth in your Corporation, Simon & Schuster

Strand B: The PASS tutorial framework as an exemplar for standardising academic advising and improving academic advisor engagement

Dr Saad Arif, FHEA, and Dr Deborah Pearce, SFHEA, Oxford Brookes University

A variety of academic advising approaches have been implemented in programmes and Schools across Oxford Brookes University. The role of academic advising and related tutorials are arguably most relevant during the first year, when students require support for successful transition to the academic demands of university life and developing a sense of belonging within their new academic community. Here we describe the implementation, content, evolution and relative success of an academic advising and tutorial framework, referred to as Personal and Academic Support Scheme (PASS) tutorials, delivered to Biosciences students in the School of Biological and Medical Science by academic advisors. The PASS tutorial system is intimately intertwined with first-year skills modules and designed to encourage student academic development and engagement via eleven 1-hour tutorials evenly delivered across the first-year curriculum. Over the years, the PASS tutorials have incorporated additional elements of pastoral care with an increased emphasis on student welfare and progression. Furthermore, the PASS tutorials have provided a platform to present and discuss strategies for dealing with new challenges, such as ethical and appropriate use of generative AI tools in academic work. Finally, we present a brief summary of student views on the impact of PASS tutorials on their engagement in 2nd year and beyond. We suggest that our PASS tutorial system is an excellent framework for delivering standardized and high value academic advising in the first year.

Strand C: Mental Health First Aid (MFHA) for academic advisors: what role does/can MHFA play in academic advising?

Dr Dan Butcher, SFHEA, Sue Jennings, FHEA, and Helen Foord-Warren, FHEA, Gerry Sheppard, and Mary Lacy, Oxford Brookes University

In a concerted effort to improve Mental Health in the UK, approximately 1 in 40 adults in England have completed Mental Health First Aid training. The mission of MHFA England is to grow this to 1 in 10!

In 2022 the Oxford School of Nursing and Midwifery (OSNW) committed to preparing all its pre-registration nursing students with Mental Health First Aid (MHFA) skills. To date, approximately 680 students have completed the 2-day course focused on developing knowledge and skills to recognise and respond to Mental Health crises, and to challenge some of the stigma that persists.

In addition, we as a team of MHFA Instructors, have grown and run courses for our colleagues and fellow academic staff with Academic Advisor/Personal Tutoring responsibilities, and we have received some great feedback.

'[The] course helped build my confidence and give me a structure to manage challenging conversations.'

Workshops, 11.10 am - 12.00 pm

We know that the incidence of poor mental health among higher education students is increasing and can severely impact overall experience and academic performance. As a first and ongoing point of contact with students, the Academic Advisor/Personal Tutor may find themselves in a position of having to manage situations where they lack confidence or knowledge. While signposting is a crucial response and boundaries are important, creating space for students to share their concerns and developing a willingness to listen and legitimise mental health concerns are also crucial.

This workshop is not a Mental Health First Aid course in 50 minutes, but it will explore the nature of HE student mental health by drawing on recent reports (Lewis & Stiebahl, 2024), revisiting our obligations and boundaries. We will draw on some of the relevant MHFA® principles and helpful models, and consider how these can be applied to conversations Academic Advisors/Personal Tutors have with students. It will acknowledge the UKAT Core Values of Personal Tutoring and Academic Advising, and provide delegates with an opportunity to consider their own experiences and gain insights from OSMN MHFA instructors and student contributors. Our aim is to promote confidence in conversations and provide some models that help us understand that positive mental health is important for our students, ourselves, our colleagues and our families.

Strand D: BEE timeline: integrating academic advising with employability skills

Dr Laura Novo de Azevedo, FHEA, Lindsey Harrison, Dr Blanca Rodriguez Beltran, and Dr Mary Kitchener, SFHEA, Oxford Brookes University

The BEE (Brookes Enterprise and Employability) timeline is a project led by Principal Lecturers in Education and Student Experience at Oxford Brookes University. It is part of the Brookes <u>IDEAS</u> framework and provides a graphic representation of opportunities for students to enhance their employability and enterprise skills at a programme level.

Since its conception, it has been a main component in delivering a more meaningful academic advising process for the BA in Urban Design, Planning and Development (BA UDP). The timeline provides a bespoke structured framework that guides students through their academic journey, highlighting key opportunities to develop employability and enterprising skills, refine professional profiles, and expand networks. By suggesting critical milestones and activities organised per level of study, the BEE timeline enables academic advisors to systematically track students' progress, identify areas for improvement, and offer targeted support. This structured approach can help students feel better-prepared for the professional world, with a clear understanding of the skills and competencies required in urban design and planning.

The BEE timeline also plays a crucial role in the development of e-portfolios, which are an essential part of the BA UDP. As students engage with the various stages and activities outlined in the BEE timeline, they gather valuable experiences and skills that are documented and showcased in their e-portfolios. These e-portfolios, which are developed from year one and assessed as part of the Professional Practice module, in their final year, allow students to curate their learning journey, reflect on their achievements, and present their work in a visually appealing and professional manner. Academic advisors use e-portfolios in conjunction with the BEE timeline to gain insights into students' strengths and areas for development, facilitating more personalized and effective advising sessions. In this session, we would like to present the BEE timeline as a useful toolkit for academic advising sessions as it provides a bespoke and useful roadmap for students' academic and professional development. The timeline has been piloted in the BA UDP, but it is a flexible toolkit that can be adopted by any programme. The BEE timeline is sponsored by OCAED (Oxford Centre for Academic Enhancement and Development).

References:

Azevedo & Harrison (2024) Brookes Enterprise & Employability Timeline (BEE): impact on staff engagement and students' perception of their preparedness for the world of work. Research Report on the second year. Not Published.

OBU (2021) Oxford Brookes Strategy 2035. Available at:

https://www.brookes.ac.uk/getmedia/d4a0fae6-07f9-40c8-88d4-38f426788c2d/university-strategy.pdf OCAED (2021) *Employability Learning*. Available at:

https://www.brookes.ac.uk/staff/student-support/ideas-model/elements-of-the-model/employability-lear ning

Yorke, M. (2004) *Employability in higher education: what it is – what it is not. Learning and Employability Series One.* Available at:

https://www.heacademy.ac.uk/sites/default/files/id116_employability_in_higher_education_336.pdf

Academic Advising in 2025: practice, research, and theory

In this interview panel session, the authors of the forthcoming second edition of <u>Effective Personal Tutoring and Academic Advising in Higher Education</u> will discuss the latest developments in personal tutoring/academic advising in the UK higher education sector and beyond. Having produced this scholarly and practical text in 2018 covering aspects such as definitions, coaching, boundaries, monitoring students, and measuring impact, the authors will talk about current thinking in the field since the first edition including personal tutoring pedagogies, key concepts surrounding effective student interactions, and inclusive personal tutoring.



Andrew Stork, SFHEA, Programme Director for the Postgraduate Certificate in Medical Education, University of Sheffield

Andrew Stork is an academic and Programme Director in postgraduate medical education in the School of Medicine and Population Health at the University of Sheffield. Andrew is co-author of three highly regarded texts on personal tutoring and academic advising, a Senior Fellow of Advance HE, has delivered keynote conference presentations on personal tutoring, and is a personal tutor. Andrew has experience of a wide range of educational sectors and contexts, and has taught on and led postgraduate education programmes across a range of sectors. Previously, Andrew was cross-institutional quality lead for personal tutoring and student experience, and has held a wide variety of curriculum leadership, quality, learning & teaching enhancement and staff development positions.



Ben W. Walker, SFHEA, Senior Lecturer in Educational Development, Oxford Brookes University

Ben W. Walker is a Senior Lecturer in Educational Development at Oxford Brookes University, where he leads on academic advising, is the EXPLORE Experiential Scheme Leader (overseeing Fellowship of Advance HE applications), delivers staff development, and is an active educational researcher. For NACADA (the Global Community for Academic Advising), he is the UK representative on the Global Steering Committee. A keen writer and researcher in education with over 20 years' experience in teaching and teacher education, he is committed to developing the field of student support further. As co-author of practitioner texts and journal articles on personal tutoring/academic advising, he is at the forefront of professional development and research in this area.



Dave Lochtie, Operations Manager, Ann Craft Trust

Dave Lochtie is the Operations Manager for the Ann Craft Trust, a national charity dedicated to safeguarding adults, based at the University of Nottingham. He is a Co-Chair of the Association of Peer Learning Support, founding member of the Safeguarding in Higher Education Network, and former Chair of UK Advising and Tutoring (UKAT). His work on advising and tutoring, coaching, mentoring and peer support has been published and cited extensively.



Dr Nienke Alberts, Senior Research Associate, University of Bristol

Nienke Alberts is a Higher Education researcher, whose work focuses on educational inequalities, fair access, and personal tutoring. Nienke is currently working with the Sutton Trust, a charity that aims to improve educational opportunities for young people from non-privileged backgrounds and increase social mobility. Nienke is an Honorary Senior Research Associate at the University of Bristol, where she led The Personal Tutoring Project, a research project investigating personal tutoring at the University of Bristol and across the sector.



Dr Alison Raby, SFHEA, Senior Lecturer and Senior Tutor, University of Lincoln

Alison is a Senior Lecturer/Programme Leader at the University of Lincoln, where she is also responsible for personal academic tutoring. Alison has spent most of her career working with international students, firstly as a Teacher of English as a Foreign Language and School Director in Poland, then at Nottingham Trent International College, and most recently working with the British Council on Accelerating English Language Learning in Central Asia. She has completed a PhD (Prof) in Education around Chinese students' experiences of personal tutoring in the UK and also holds SFHEA. She has authored texts around personal tutoring and is keen to conduct further research in this area.

Strand A: Transforming advising practices: relational tutoring for employability beyond the classroom

Dr Diana (Dee) Clayton, SFHEA, and Dr Anna Klenert, FHEA, Oxford Brookes University

Mentoring serves as a dynamic relationship capable of fostering talent development, facilitating the establishment of social bonds and bridges (Putnam, 1995) and partnerships with industry, and cultivating a collaborative learning community of practice (Gannon, Clayton, & Klenert, 2021). In addition, mentoring is evidence of experiential learning for students (Klenert, 2021) as an integral element of their learning journey. In a similar vein, university academic advising typically represents a developmental relationship between students and academics (Wakelin, 2023) aimed at fostering individual educational outcomes, employability skills, and overall readiness for life post-graduation (Stork & Walker, 2015; Walker, 2018). This paper aims to reframe personal tutoring by exploring the Bacchus Mentoring Programme (BMP) at Oxford Brookes Business School, which serves as an alternative form of one-on-one (academic) advising.

Designed for Hospitality and Tourism final-year undergraduate and postgraduate students in the Oxford Brookes Business School, the BMP connects students with external business practitioners within their field to provide mentorship focused on career development, employability, and professional growth. Further, the BMP addresses Teaching Excellence Framework (TEF) objectives by offering students value-added networking opportunities, increasing their likelihood of attaining graduate-level employment (Office for Students, 2025, February). These mentoring relationships are integrated within the compulsory curriculums and encourage reflective learning and personal development for future leadership roles. Mentoring, like tutoring, is a two-way relationship (Lancer, Clutterbuck, & Megginson, 2016) where mentors guide mentees at earlier stages of development, promoting self-awareness and competency insights (Clutterbuck, 2008). Developmental mentoring has shown particularly positive outcomes for under-represented groups, including such as: non-white (Alcocer & Martinez, 2018), low-income (Mac Iver, Sheldon, Naeger, & Clark, 2017), disabled (Taylor, 2004) and neurodiverse students (Roberts & Birmingham, 2017). This mentoring model supports university enrichment, retention, and achievement (Crisp, Baker, Griffin, Lunsford, & Pifer, 2017; Jacobi, 1991).

The roundtable will examine BMP's effectiveness as a mentoring model for academic advising, highlighting its impact on employability, networking, leadership skills, and core sector-specific values. By emphasising external engagement, relationship-building, and personal learning, this panel discussion presents mentoring as a reimagined form of one-to-one tutoring that enriches students' academic experiences.

References:

Alcocer, L. F., & Martinez, A. (2018) 'Mentoring Hispanic students: A literature review', *Journal of Hispanic Higher Education*, 17(4), pp.393-401.

Clutterbuck, D. (2008) 'What's happening in coaching and mentoring? And what is the difference between them?', *Development and Learning in Organizations: An International Journal*, 22(4), pp.8-10. doi:10.1108/14777280810886364

Crisp, G., Baker, V. L., Griffin, K. A., Lunsford, L. G., & Pifer, M. J. (2017) 'Mentoring undergraduate students', *ASHE Higher Education Report*, 43(1), pp.7-103. doi:10.1002/aehe.20117

Gannon, J., Clayton, D., & Klenert, A. (2021) 'Mentoring initiatives as talent management innovations', in S. Jooss, R. Burbach, & H. Ruël (eds.) *Talent management innovations in the international hospitality industry* Bingley, Yorks: Emerald Publishing Limited. pp. 99-125.

Jacobi, M. (1991) 'Mentoring and undergraduate academic success: A literature review', *Review of Educational Research*, 61(4), pp.505-532. doi:10.3102/00346543061004505

Round tables, 1.10 - 2.00 pm

Klenert, A. (2021) 'Capitalising on internal collaboration: Redesigning the placement preparation process for an international postgraduate hospitality programme', in L. Ren & B. McKercher (eds.) *Practical learning in hospitality education*. The University of Queensland.

Mac Iver, M. A., Sheldon, S., Naeger, S., & Clark, E. (2017) 'Mentoring students back ontrack to graduation: Program results from five communities', *Education and Urban Society*, 49(7), pp.643-675.

Office for Students. (2025, February) *Our Strategy: Our mission. About.* Retrieved from https://www.officeforstudents.org.uk/about/how-we-are-run/our-strategy/

Putnam, R. D. (1995) 'Bowling alone: America's declining social capital', *Journal of Democracy*, 6(1), pp.65-78.

Roberts, N., & Birmingham, E. (2017) 'Mentoring university students with ASD: a mentee-centered approach', *Journal of Autism and Developmental Disorders*, 47(4), pp.1038-1050.

Stork, A., & Walker, B. W. (2015) *Becoming an outstanding personal tutor: supporting learners through personal tutoring and coaching.* Abingdon, Routledge.

Taylor, M. (2004) 'Widening participation into higher education for disabled students', *Education + Training*, 46(1), pp.40-48. doi:10.1108/00400910410518214

Wakelin, E. (2023) 'Personal tutoring in higher education: an action research project on how to improve personal tutoring for both staff and students', *Educational Action Research*, 31(5), pp.998-1013. doi:10.1080/09650792.2021.2013912

Walker, B. (2018) 'A defining moment for personal tutoring: Reflections on personal tutor definitions and their implications', *IMPact: The University of Lincoln Journal of Higher Education Research*, 1(1).

Strand B: Signposting is only the start: effective referrals for successful student outcomes

Dr Michelle Reid, SFHEA, Oxford Brookes University

You've referred a student...but do you know they have got there? This round table discussion, facilitated by the Centre for Academic Development, brings together academic advisors, students, and student services staff to explore the expertise that informs successful referrals to other services. It directly engages with the conference theme of "Setting boundaries and working with professional services". It will examine referral processes, the right tone and soft skills involved in referrals, and an understanding of why some people may not access support. Evidence shows that meaningful relationships between staff and students are at the core of student success and retention (Thomas et al., 2017). However, there are many barriers to seeking support that can prevent these relationships from forming (Grant, 2021). Having robust, standardised methods of referral can paradoxically enable more informal and individualised support for students (Power, 2022). However, referral processes alone are not enough; staff need to be proactive in helping students make "active connections" with people in support roles (Tevis and Britton, 2020). The manner in which a student is recommended to seek support, and the corresponding tone of the welcome they receive from the service can be a critical moment that defines the success of the referral. Indeed, research into the most important skills for both academic advisors and student service professionals list communication, listening and interpersonal skills as the top three (Burkard et al., 2004; Menke, Stuck and Ackerson, 2018), with student services staff reporting that they need advanced human relation skills far beyond the basic level (Burkard et al., 2004).

Attendees at this round table discussion will gain a greater understanding of how collaboration can enable successful referrals, and it will provide an opportunity to identify any missing links in our holistic support for students.

References:

Burkard, A. W., Cole, D. C., Ott, M., and Stoflet, T. (2005) 'Entry-level competencies of new student affairs professionals: A Delphi study', *NASPA Journal*, 42(3), pp.283–309. Available at: https://doi.org/10.2202/1949-6605.1509

Grant, A. (2021) The role of student services in higher education: university and the student experience. Cham: Palgrave Macmillan.

Menke, D., Stuck, S., and Ackerson, S. (2018) 'Assessing advisor competencies: A Delphi Method study', *NACADA Journal*, 38(1), pp.12-21. Available at: https://doi.org/10.12930/NACADA-16-040

Power, S. (2022) 'Developing staff referral pathways to aid in proactive management and maintenance of student health and wellbeing', *JANZSSA - Journal of the Australian and New Zealand Student Services Association*, 30(1), pp.63–83. Available at:

https://janzssa.scholasticahq.com/article/57663-developing-staff-referral-pathways-to-aid-in-proactive-management-and-maintenance-of-student-health-and-wellbeing.

Tevis, T., and Britton, K. (2020) 'First-year student experiences: Uncovering the hidden expectations of frontline faculty members and student services administrators', *Innovative Higher Education*, 45, pp.333–349. Available at: https://doi-org.oxfordbrookes.idm.oclc.org/10.1007/s10755-020-09511-z

Thomas, L., Hill, M., O'Mahony, J. and Yorke, M. (2017) *Supporting Student Success: Strategies for Institutional Change. What Works? Student Retention and Success Programme. Final Report.*London: Paul Hamlyn Foundation.

Strand C: Fostering effective academic advising relationships with adults: bridging the relational space with colleague learners

Dr Mary Kitchener, SFHEA, and Gillian Kelly, Oxford Brookes University

Academic Advising plays a crucial role in EXPLORE, Brookes' scheme designed to help new academic and teaching staff gain Fellowship of Advance HE. It supports colleagues throughout the scheme, from onboarding to celebrating their achievements, to ensure high retention and completion rates.

Furthermore, academic advisors are invaluable resources for colleagues new to higher education and Oxford Brookes University. They provide guidance to help navigate the complexities of the new environment and institutional culture as colleagues progress through legitimate peripheral participation (Lave and Wenger, 1991) and integrate into the academic role.

However, academic advising involves navigating the delicate relational balance between being a learner on a practice-based, holistic development scheme and being a colleague. The literature on academic advising centres around undergraduate and, to a lesser extent, postgraduate students (Morgan, 2025) and adult learners (e.g., Roessger, Eisentrout, and Hevel, 2019). The relational aspect of serving as an academic advisor to a colleague is notably underexplored.

The programme leader and participants from EXPLORE will share insights and practical approaches to fostering such adult working relationships with colleagues through academic advising. In particular, the programme leader will unpack how concepts of Heutagogy (Hase and Kenyon, 2000), Andragogy (Knowles, 1975) Transactional Analysis (Berne, 1961), and Unconditional Positive Regard (Rogers, 1980) are crucial in building trust and mutual respect among colleagues to foster a supportive and non-judgmental environment to ensure colleagues are well-equipped to navigate their academic and career path.

References:

Berne, E. (1961) *Transactional analysis in psychotherapy*. New York: Grove Hase, S., & Kenyon, C. (2000) 'From andragogy to heutagogy'. In UltiBase Articles. Available at: http://ultibase.rmit.edu.au/Articles/dec00/hase2.htm. [Accessed: 7 April 2025].

Knowles, M. (1975) *Self-directed learning: A guide for learners and teachers*. United States of America: Cambridge Adult Education.

Lave, J. and Wenger, E. (1991) *Situated learning: legitimate peripheral participation*. Cambridge, United Kingdom: Cambridge University Press.

Morgan, M. (2025) *Higher Education (HE) has changed dramatically in the past 30 years*. Available at: https://www.improvingthestudentexperience.com/. [Accessed: 7 April 2025].

Roessger, K.M., Eisentrout, K. and Hevel, M.S. (2019) 'Age and academic advising in community colleges: Examining the assumption of self-directed learning', *Community College Journal of Research and Practice*, 43(6), pp.441–454.

Rogers, C. R. (1980) A way of being. Boston, USA: Houghton Mifflin Harcourt.

Strand A: Integrating Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) into academic advising for purposeful career development

Associate Professor Margaret Mbindyo, Millersville University, Pennsylvania, USA

The 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development, which includes seventeen interconnected Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), provides a framework for addressing global challenges such as poverty, inequality, and climate change (United Nations General Assembly, 2015). Academic advising can play a crucial role in cultivating students' awareness of these goals and helping students develop essential skills for contributing to a sustainable future (UNESCO, 2015). Academic advising, when approached through the lens of the SDGs, offers a transformative approach to student development and career preparation. This approach moves beyond traditional advising models to include aligning students' career interests to SDGs, which fosters global citizenship and social responsibility. Lastly, this approach in advising necessitates a shift towards a more critical advising framework, one which promotes sustainability (Drake, 2013). By incorporating the SDGs into advising practices, students are empowered to connect their academic pursuits with real-world challenges, leading to more purposeful career choices and a deeper understanding of their role in creating a better world. In addition, students develop social responsibility, global perspective, and sense of civic responsibility.

The Council for the Advancement of Standards in Higher Education (CAS) emphasizes the importance of integrating sustainability practices and preparing students for careers and citizenship by encouraging social responsibility and global perspectives within academic advising programs (NACADA, 2023). CAS has developed fifty sets of functional area standards and three cross-functional frameworks for higher education programs and services which include sustainability programs. In addition, while NACADA's core values focus on academic advising, they align significantly with the spirit and intent of the SDGs (NACADA, 2017). One of the core values is caring, which in academic advising emphasizes empathy, compassion, and a genuine concern for the well-being of students (SDG 3). By providing support and guidance, advisors can help students navigate academic and personal challenges, which can positively impact their mental and emotional health. Another of the core values is inclusivity. This aligns with SDG 10, which seeks to reduce inequalities. Inclusivity in academic advising means creating environments where all students feel welcome, valued, and respected, regardless of their background, identity, or circumstances (Molinah Roldán, et al 2021). Academic advising that respects and values diverse student populations contributes to a more equitable educational system.

Academic advisors can guide students in exploring career pathways that align with the SDGs and help students to find meaning and purpose in their professional lives. This approach aligns with the advising goal of helping students "clarify educational, career, and life goals" and by embracing the SDGs in their advising work, academic advisors can play a pivotal role in shaping a generation of globally conscious and socially responsible graduates.

This presentation will explore the transformative role of academic advising in integrating SDGs into the advising profession. It will focus on practical strategies for advisors to embed SDGs into advising practices. Adopting an SDG-informed approach in their advising, advisors foster an environment where all students, irrespective of background or challenges, are encouraged to aspire to achieve their highest potential (Creamer, 2000).

Delegates attending this session will explore strategies for academic advisors to embed SDGs into their advising practices, how SDG-aligned advising fosters critical thinking, global awareness, and purposeful career development among first-year students, how to empower students to connect their academic pursuits with real-world challenges and align their educational choices with meaningful career pathways, and how SDG-aligned advising, particularly in relation to SDG 1 (No Poverty) and SDG 10 (Reduced Inequalities), can enhance student retention, success, and informed career choices, especially among marginalized groups.

References:

Creamer, D. G. (2000) Advancing developmental advising: Integrating theory, research, and practice. New Jersey, USA: Jossey-Bass.

Drake, J. K. (2013) Academic advising approaches: Strategies that teach students to learn. New Jersey, USA: John Wiley & Sons.

Edwards Jr., D.B. and Means, A. (2019) 'Globalization, privatization, and marginalization: Mapping and assessing connections and consequences in/through education', *Education Policy Analysis Archives*, 27(123), pp.1–37.

Molina Roldán, S., Marauri, J., Aubert, A., and Flecha, R. (2021) 'How inclusive interactive learning environments benefit students without special needs', *Frontiers in Psychology*, 12, 661427. https://doi.org/10.3389/fpsyq.2021.66142

NACADA (2017) *Core values of academic advising*. Retrieved from: https://nacada.ksu.edu/about-us/core-values.aspx

NACADA, (2023) Council for the Advancement of Standards in Higher Education. Retrieved from: https://standards.cas.edu/standard/part/ACADADVP

UNESCO (2015) Rethinking education: Towards a common good? Paris, France: UNESCO Publishing.

United Nations General Assembly (2015) *Transforming our world: the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development*. A/RES/70/1.

Strand B: Working with inclusive support to support students with Dyslexia/Neurodiversity

Catherine Black, Oxford Brookes University

I have worked as a Dyslexia/Specific Learning Difficulties/Differences (SpLDs) Tutor in the Inclusive Support Service at Oxford Brookes University (OBU, 2025a) since September 2010. I will give an overview of Dyslexia and other SpLDs/Neurodiversities British Dyslexia Association (BDA, 2025a; BDA 2025b)/Neurodivergences (Botha et al., 2004), including Dyspraxia/Developmental Coordination Disorder, Attention Deficit (Hyperactivity) Disorder (AD(H)D), and Autistic Spectrum Conditions (ASC) (DANDA: Developmental Adult Neuro-Diversity Association, 2013). I will describe signs of these conditions that may become apparent during academic advice sessions (BDA, 2025a; BDA 2025b). Neurodiverse students may experience difficulties with self-advocacy (Bublitz et al., 2017). They may fear stigma around disclosing special needs, and Academic Advisors may be one of the first professionals they meet on campus, so sensitive referral to professional services is beneficial (Zilvinskis et al., 2020). Screening and personalised outreach can help facilitate this process (Deacon et al., 2017). I will explain how to refer students to the Dyslexia/SpLD Team within the Inclusive Support Service and how we support students referred to us (OBU, 2025h). This includes Dyslexia/SpLD assessment (OBU, 2025c); exam access arrangements (OBU, 2025f), which have been shown to provide equal opportunity rather than an unfair advantage (Rodeiro & Macinska, 2022); and library arrangements (OBU, 2025g) organised by OBU. It also includes assistive technology (OBU, 2025d) and 1:1 tutorials with myself or one of my colleagues (OBU, 2025j) funded through the Disabled

Students' Allowance (OBU, 2025e). I will cover Brookes' guidance regarding making online resources, lectures, and other materials accessible (OBU, 2025i) and how my manager monitors this with colleagues. I will describe access arrangements students may request for in-class tests (OBU, 2025f). While my colleagues and I can teach general study skills (OBU, 2025j), students will rely on academic advice sessions for subject-specific support (OBU, 2025b). Neurodiverse students benefit from individualised tutoring (Graham, 2020; Kelly and Erwin, 2022) and coaching (Doyle and McDowall, 2024; Manning and Myers, 2025) to help build confidence and achieve their potential.

Delegates will gain a greater understanding of how to support and refer neurodiverse students to Inclusive Support during this session.

References:

Botha, M., Chapman, R., Giwa Onaiwu, M., Kapp, S. K., Stannard Ashley, A., and Walker, N. (2024) 'The neurodiversity concept was developed collectively: An overdue correction on the origins of neurodiversity theory', *Autism*, 28(6), pp.1591-1594. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1177/13623613241237871

British Dyslexia Association (2025a) *Dyslexia*. Available at: https://www.bdadyslexia.org.uk/dyslexia [Accessed: 2 April 2025].

British Dyslexia Association (2025b) *Neurodiversity and Co-occurring difficulties*. Available at: https://www.bdadyslexia.org.uk/dyslexia/neurodiversity-and-co-occurring-differences/what-is-neurodiversity [Accessed: 28 March 2025].

Bublitz, D., Donachie, A., Wong, V., and Brooks, P. J. (2017) 'For a long time our voices have been hushed: Using student perspectives to develop support for neurodiverse college students', *Frontiers in Psychology*, 8, 253746. Available at: https://doi.org/10.3389/fpsyg.2017.00544

DANDA: Developmental Adult Neuro-Diversity Association (2013) *The make-up of neuro-diversity*. Available at:

https://www.diverse-learners.co.uk/neurodiversity-diagram-showing-how-dyslexia-dyspraxia-adhd-and-aspergers-syndrome-overlap/ [Accessed 31 January 2025].

Deacon, S.H., Tucker, R., Bergey, B.W., Laroche, A. and Parrila, R. (2017) 'Personalized outreach to university students with a history of reading difficulties: Early screening and outreach to support academically at-risk students', *Journal of College Student Development*, 58(3), pp.432-450.

Doyle, N. and McDowall, A. (2024) *Neurodiversity coaching: A psychological approach to supporting neurodivergent talent and career potential.* Abingdon, Oxon: Routledge Available at: https://search-ebscohost-com.oxfordbrookes.idm.oclc.org/login.aspx?direct=true&db=nlebk&AN=3752 https://search-ebscohost-com.oxfordbrookes.idm.oclc.org/login.aspx?direct=true&db=nlebk&AN=3752 https://search-ebscohost-com.oxfordbrookes.idm.oclc.org/login.aspx?direct=true&db=nlebk&AN=3752 https://search-ebscohost-com.oxfordbrookes.idm.oclc.org/login.aspx?direct=true&db=nlebk&AN=3752 https://search-ebscohost-com.oxfordbrookes.idm.oclc.org/login.aspx?direct=true&db=nlebk&AN=3752

Graham, C. (2020) 'Can we measure the impact? An evaluation of one-to-one support for students with specific learning difficulties', *Widening Participation and Lifelong Learning*, 22(2), pp.122-134. Available at: https://doi.org/10.5456/WPLL.22.2.122

Kelly, D. R., and Erwin, V. M. (2022) 'Specific learning difficulty tutors: direct supports for navigating disabilities and the university environment', *Disability & Society*, 39(5), pp.1123–1146. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1080/09687599.2022.2114882

Manning, J., and Myers, A. (2025) *Coaching with Neurodivergent Individuals*. Available at: https://www.brookes.ac.uk/about-brookes/structure-and-governance/faculties-and-schools/business/business-engagement/train-your-people/coaching/coaching-with-neurodivergent-individuals [Accessed 2 April 2025].

Oxford Brookes University (2025a) About us. Available at:

https://www.brookes.ac.uk/students/inclusive-support-service/about-us [Accessed 31 January 2025]. Oxford Brookes University (2025b) *Academic Advisors*. Available at:

https://www.brookes.ac.uk/students/your-studies/academic-advisers [Accessed: 2 April 2025].

Oxford Brookes University (2025c) Assessment for dyslexia and specific learning difficulties. Available at:

https://www.brookes.ac.uk/students/inclusive-support-service/assessment-for-dyslexia-spld [Accessed 31 January 2025].

Oxford Brookes University (2025d) *Assistive Technology support.* Available at: https://www.brookes.ac.uk/students/inclusive-support-service/assistive-technology [Accessed 31 January 2025].

Free Form, 2.05 - 2.55 pm

Oxford Brookes University (2025e) *Disabled Students' Allowance*. Available at: https://www.brookes.ac.uk/students/inclusive-support-service/disabled-students-allowance [Accessed 31 January 2025].

Oxford Brookes University (2025f) *Exam arrangements for disabled students*. Available at: https://www.brookes.ac.uk/students/exams/before-your-exams/exam-arrangements-for-disabled-students [Accessed 31 January 2025].

Oxford Brookes University (2025g) *Library services for disabled people*. Available at: https://www.brookes.ac.uk/library/access-and-accessibility/library-services-for-disabled-people [Accessed 31 January 2025].

Oxford Brookes University (2025h) New students. Available at:

https://www.brookes.ac.uk/students/inclusive-support-service/new-students [Accessed 31 January 2025].

Oxford Brookes University (2025i) *Reasonable adjustments*. Available at: https://www.brookes.ac.uk/staff/student-support/inclusive-support-service/reasonable-adjustments [Accessed 31 January 2025].

Oxford Brookes University (2025j) Specialist tutoring. Available at:

https://www.brookes.ac.uk/students/inclusive-support-service/non-medical-help#tutoring [Accessed: 2 April 2025].

Rodeiro, C.V., and Macinska, S. (2022) 'Equal opportunity or unfair advantage? The impact of test accommodations on performance in high-stakes assessments', *Assessment in Education: Principles, Policy & Practice*, 29(4), pp.462-481. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1080/0969594X.2022.2121680 Zilvinskis, J., Barber, R. E., Brozinsky, J.L., and Hochberg, S.R. (2020) 'Measuring the differential effects of behaviors of academic advisors for students with disabilities', *NACADA Journal* 40(2), pp.15–32. Available at: https://doi.org/10.12930/NACADA-19-25

Strand C: How might the Academic Advising (AA)/Personal Tutor role purposefully help student nurses develop the required professional values and associated behaviours in preparation for future employment?

Sue Chilton, SFHEA, Oxford Brookes University

This presentation will share details of the first phase of a project undertaken between September - December 2021 in the Oxford School of Nursing & Midwifery at Oxford Brookes University as part of a university-wide 'Academic Advising Scholarship Group' initiative.

The session will critically explore those factors influencing unhealthy working cultures within nursing which impact recruitment/retention/job satisfaction of nurses and patient outcomes, identify the key qualities required for developing therapeutic/civil relationships with service users/colleagues, and consider, using initial project findings, ways in which the Academic Advising process might purposefully help develop the required professional values/attributes.

This project focuses on the development of professional values/attributes as research/inquiries/reports continue to show that the recruitment/experiences/retention of nurses are often influenced negatively by unhealthy working cultures (HEE, 2018), highlighting the need to develop more humanistic working practices (McCalman and Potter, 2015). As 'today's students are tomorrow's colleagues', conversations regarding how to address incivility and bullying should include specific aspects of nursing academia and the preparation of new nurses (Luparell, 2011, p.92). The project links to the NMC Code (2018) and one of OBU's graduate attributes – Personal Literacy and Critical Self-awareness.

Key findings were that the Academic Advising process should:

 be universal, supporting students academically, pastorally, and professionally across the years.

Free Form, 2.05 - 2.55 pm

- allow AAs to role model professional values.
- be 'emancipatory and transformational', enabling critical self-reflection on experiences in theory & practice & promoting professionalism, which is pivotal in creating more humanistic working cultures.
- offer students strategies/frameworks for independent learning, signposting to support whilst guiding students to develop emotional intelligence.
- be available in a group format to deliver common information/advice & promote collaborative reflection and debate and in a 1:1 format to address specific/sensitive issues in a safe, non-judgmental space.
- have clear, pre-set goals, sets of questions, discussion points and outcomes at different progression points.
- be valued, have a higher profile and be mandatory (like PDR process in employment).

References:

Health Education England (2018) RePAIR: Reducing Pre-registration Attrition and Improving Retention. London: HEE

Luparell, S. (2011) 'Incivility in nursing: The connection between academia and clinical settings', *Critical Care Nurse*, 31(2), pp.92-95

McCalman, J. and Potter, D. (2015) *Leading cultural change*. London: Kogan Page Nursing & Midwifery Council (2018) *The code: Professional standards of practice and behaviour for nurses, midwives and nursing associates*. London: NMC

Strand D: Artificial intelligence and academic advising

Dr Charlie Simpson, SFHEA, Oxford Brookes University

Artificial intelligence (AI) is reshaping higher education, and its integration into traditional academic advising systems offers promising opportunities to enhance student support.

Tools such as chatbots and smartphone apps, usually powered by large language models such as ChatGPT, create an approachable, round-the-clock resource for students, simulating conversational exchanges and providing quick answers to common queries (Baillifard et al., 2025; Latrellis et al., 2024). For example, Latrellis et al. (2024) asked ChatGPT-4 to generate text responses to typical scenarios that an academic advisor might encounter. These scenarios included providing students with recommendations to help secure internships, select a BSc dissertation topic, or to improve their preparedness to progress onto an MBA programme. These recommendations (n=40) were added to human-generated responses (n=27) using the same scenarios. Next, five human academic advisors (with ~18 years of related academic experience) reviewed all Al and human-generated outputs using a 5-point Likert scale (5 = strongly agree) for the following dimensions: acceptability, clarity, relevance, practicality, and impact. The human reviewers were blinded to the authorship of each recommendation. The global mean score for Al-generated recommendations was 3.1 ± 0.6 compared with 3.4 ± 0.6 for human-generated recommendations, with 6 of the 15 highest rated responses generated by AI. These results underscore the growing potential of Al-powered advising tools.

Academic research into the suitability of Al-powered advising systems is still in a nascent stage due to the inherent lag between rapid technological innovation and academic review processes. However, a growing range of commercially available Al-powered platforms that claim to support academic advising systems are already available (e.g., <u>Element451</u>, <u>Advisor.Al</u>).

However, challenges persist, including ethical considerations regarding data privacy, bias in Al algorithms, and the potential dehumanisation of the advising process (Batsaikhan and Correia, 2024). To mitigate these issues, staff must be trained to critically evaluate and ethically deploy Al tools, ensuring that these innovations augment rather than replace human expertise.

Attendees will gain new insights about current AI applications and how these can be deployed to assist both students and staff in teaching and pastoral roles. Drawing on practical examples, the session will demonstrate a selection of the latest generation of AI tools that might be useful for supporting student learning and improving academic advising.

References:

Baillifard, A., Gabella, M., Lavenex, P.B., and Martarelli, C. (2024) <u>Effective learning with a personal Al tutor: A case study. Education and Information Technologies</u>, 30, 297–312.

Batsaikhan, B., & Correia, A.-P. (2024). <u>The effects of generative artificial intelligence on intelligent tutoring systems in higher education: A systematic review. Studies in Technology Enhanced Learning</u>, 4(1).

latrellis, O., Samaras, N., Kokkinos, K., & Panagiotakopoulos, T. (2024). <u>Leveraging Generative Al for Sustainable Academic Advising: Enhancing Educational Practices through Al-Driven Recommendations</u>. <u>Sustainability</u>, 16(17), 7829.

U.S. Department of Education, Office of Educational Technology. (2023). Artificial intelligence and the future of teaching and learning: Insights and recommendations.

Strand A: Purposeful academic advising practices: a student developmental offering (Paper)

Dr Shelley Beck, FHEA, and Deborah Carpenter, FHEA, Oxford Brookes University

The role of an academic advisor has become integral to the success of students while at higher education institutions (McIntosh et al., 2021; Walker, 2018). However, the role of an academic advisor has lent itself towards being pastoral in nature in addition to providing the advisees academic support (McGill, Ali and Barton, 2020). According to McIntosh et al. (2018) it is critical to develop the whole student, not only their academic capabilities. Therefore, there is a need for academic advising to develop practices that focus on supporting students to develop critical skills for lifelong learning (McIntosh et al., 2018). This paper seeks to further that conversation and put forward a skill and competency focused offering to encourage advisee personal development. This study has made use of quantitative data gathered from 23 postgraduate students at a Higher Education Institution in the United Kingdom. This study found that including strategically placed signposting of critical skill and competency based material through the academic advisors Moodle site increased student's interactions with these materials and workshops. An interesting finding was that of all the critical skill and competency workshops that were clicked on, active listening and self-management workshops were most sought after. The results of this study provide evidence that an 'intentional programme of meaningful, structured activities' (Grey and Osborne, 2019) increases student engagement with academic advising and has the potential to contribute to a student's 'learning gain' (Lochtie, Stork and Walker, 2022). Recognising its potential to actively engage students in the development of lifelong learning competencies, academic advising should be more prominently integrated into students' programs of study.

References:

Grey, D. and Osborne, C. (2018) 'Perceptions and principles of personal tutoring', *Journal of Further and Higher Education*, 44(3), pp.285–299. doi: 10.1080/0309877X.2018.1536258.

Lochtie, D., Stork, A. and Walker, B.W. (2022) 'The higher education personal tutor's and advisor's companion: Translating theory into practice to improve student success', St Albans: Critical Publishing.

McGill, C.M., Ali, M. and Barton, D. (2020) 'Skills and competencies for effective academic advising and personal tutoring', *Frontiers in Education*, 5, p.135. Available at: https://doi.org/10.3389/feduc.2020.00135

McIntosh, E. A., Troxel, W. G., Grey, D., Van Den Wijngaard, O., and Thomas, L. (2021) 'Academic advising and tutoring for student success in higher education: International perspectives', *Frontiers in Education*. Available at: https://doi.org/10.3389/978-2-88966-496-2

Walker, B. (2018) 'A defining moment for personal tutoring: Reflections on personal tutor definitions and their implications', *IMPact: The University of Lincoln Journal of Higher Education Research*, 1(1).

Strand B: Bridging the awarding gaps: effective academic advising practices to address persistent awarding disparities (Paper)

Dr Satomi Kimino, SFHEA, University of Hull

The role of personal supervision (academic advising) is pivotal in tackling the awarding gaps in higher education, particularly for racially minoritised students. By offering personalised guidance, fostering engagement, and nurturing a sense of belonging, this support is essential for promoting academic success and equity.

Between 2021 and 2024, awarding gap trends in our subject group have shown both significant progress and persistent inequities. Mature students saw a remarkable improvement, with their gap shifting from 34.4% in 2021/22 to a reverse gap of -22.4% in 2023/24. Similarly, students with disabilities experienced a positive change, with their gap narrowing from 11.8% to -9.7%. However, ethnic disparities remain deeply concerning. For instance, Black students experienced a sharp rise in their awarding gap, escalating from -16.7% to 83.1%, while Asian students recorded a peak gap of 25.9%. These disparities highlight the urgent need for targeted, strategic interventions.

Personal supervision has proven to be an effective approach to addressing such inequities. Robust personal tutoring systems provide tailored support that helps students overcome academic challenges while creating a more inclusive learning environment (Gabi *et al.*, 2024). Structured approaches to personal tutoring have been shown to enhance students' confidence, engagement, and sense of belonging—factors critical for retention and academic success (Hooff & Westall, 2016). For example, the Tutoring Action Programme in Spain illustrates the importance of discipline-specific mentoring in guiding students' academic and career pathways (Pozo-Rubio *et al.*, 2014).

Furthermore, personal tutoring functions as a strategic tool for promoting equity by offering consistent support to underrepresented groups and addressing systemic inequities (Thomas & Hixenbaugh, 2006; Gabi *et al.*, 2024). However, challenges persist, including a disconnect between students' expectations of engagement and their actual experiences with tutoring systems (Simpson, 2006). Addressing these challenges requires ongoing evaluation and adaptation of tutoring practices to meet the diverse needs of today's student population.

Our work highlights proactive strategies such as structured meetings ahead of assessment deadlines, tailored guidance on academic processes, and personalised progress reviews. These interventions have been effective in fostering a sense of belonging and improving outcomes for at-risk groups. By integrating personalised communication and data-driven support, we can narrow awarding gaps and support student success holistically. This presentation aligns with the Learning and Teaching conference themes by showcasing how academic advising and personal supervision can advance equity, address awarding gaps, and enhance student outcomes through relational and evidence-based practices.

References to follow.

Strand C: Teaching tutors: incorporating a module on academic advising within an MA Learning and Teaching in Higher Education programme (Paper)

Dr Elizabeth Munro, SFHEA, University of Winchester

This paper examines the design and implementation of a 10-credit, postgraduate module on personal tutoring within the postgraduate master's programme, Learning and Teaching in Higher Education (MA LTHE). Applying Lowenstein's integrative learning theory (2014), this work calls for a practical and conceptual shift within educational development in order to better support academic staff to cultivate effective personal tutoring practices. Given the ever-increasing importance of belonging and mattering within Higher Education, underpinned by a heightened appreciation of the wider socio-emotional dimensions of the student experience, the paper concludes that the explicit teaching of personal tutoring is now an integral duty for educational developers to undertake. The paper will outline how the module was created, including indicative activities, content and student feedback, to support other colleagues to reflect upon how such a module could be developed in their own context.

References:

Jones, G. and Munro, E. (2025) 'A taught approach to personal tutoring', *International Journal for Academic Development*, 1-4. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1080/1360144X.2024.2441216
Lowenstein, M. (2014) 'Toward a theory of advising', *The Mentor: An Academic Advising Journal*, 16. Available at: https://doi.org/10.26209/mj1661268

Shulenberg, J. (2021) 'The context and potential of Lowenstein's Learning-Centered Theory of Academic Advising', *NACADA Review: Academic Advising Praxis & Perspectives*, 2(1), pp.52-61. Available at: https://doi.org/10.12930/NACR-21-06

Strand D: What, where, and when is academic advising? (PechaKucha)

Dr Matt Lawson, FHEA, Oxford Brookes University

Academic advising plays a crucial role in fostering student success and engagement in University settings. This short paper explores the different environments in which academic advising occurs, with a focus on the timing, settings, and effective practices involved. While formal, timetabled meetings with academic advisors are essential for providing structured guidance, advising often also takes place in less formal settings such as email exchanges, post-lecture chats, and corridor conversations. These informal interactions offer students flexibility and can address immediate concerns, but they may lack the depth and formality needed for comprehensive support.

Proactive academic advising is also an essential approach that shifts the focus from reacting to academic struggles to anticipating and addressing potential challenges before they become crises. This method of advising involves regular, ongoing communication between advisors and students, focusing on identifying early warning signs of academic or personal difficulty and intervening before students fall behind or experience significant setbacks. In proactive advising, advisors take the initiative to reach out to students at key points throughout the academic year, rather than waiting for students to seek help when issues arise. This paper argues that regular, predictable timetabled academic advising sessions facilitate this proactive process.

3.05 - 3.25 pm, Papers and PechaKucha

We examine the relationship and balance between formal and informal advising, stressing that effective academic advising requires a combination of both approaches. A holistic advising strategy that integrates structured meetings and informal conversations helps students navigate academic and personal challenges while fostering a supportive advising relationship. The paper also highlights the importance of ensuring that informal interactions are still meaningful and aligned with students' academic needs. Academic advising should be viewed as an ongoing holistic process inside and outside of formalised meeting spaces, with diverse modes of communication working together to support students' academic journeys.

References:

Campbell, S.M. and Nutt, C.L. (2008) 'Academic advising in the new global century', *Peer Review*, 10(1), pp.4-7.

Jamaludin, A.R., Alagappan, D., Fikry, W.A.W.I., Zainal, S.Z., Hadi, F.S.A., Shaharuddin, N. and Abd Rahman, N.I. (2021) 'The effectiveness of academic advising on student performance', *International Journal of Advanced Research in Future Ready Learning and Education*, 25(1), pp.20-29.

Mu, L. and Fosnacht, K. (2019) 'Effective advising: how academic advising influences student learning outcomes in different institutional contexts', *The Review of Higher Education*, 42(4), pp.1283-1307.

Cultivating success: the spectrum of integrated advising

A transformative student experience lies at the intersection of personal and academic engagement, connection and growth. Achieving intentional and individualised student development is best accomplished through a relationship-rich education, where the pursuit of a successful student experience is a collective priority. In the context of higher education globally, this session will highlight a spectrum of advising practices at two Australian universities. Through differing approaches, both institutions share a commitment to partnering with students to cultivate an experience that fosters belonging, self-efficacy, positive emotions, and well-being as pathways to engagement and success. In doing so, the session will also reflect on the variety of approaches and practices highlighted throughout the day's proceedings.



Dr Catherine Mann, Associate Director, Academic Mentoring, The University of Melbourne, Australia

Catherine leads university-wide strategic enhancement of Academic Mentoring for undergraduate students at the University of Melbourne, working with academic leaders, professional stakeholders and students to build shared purpose and value, implement professional development and uplift the student experience. She has been a member of the UK Advising and Tutoring Association (UKAT) since 2015 and sits on the Global Initiatives Committee of NACADA: The Global Community for Academic Advising.



Dr Cat Picton, SFHEA, Student Success and Development Coordinator, University of the Sunshine Coast, Queensland, Australia

Cat leads and implements a pan-university, embedded approach to student development focussing on cross-disciplinary skills and competencies within the curriculum. Her research interests include student engagement, student success and academic student success advising, with a focus on the regional university experience. In her current professional role, Cat is a Senior Fellow of the Higher Education Academy (SFHEA) and has a keen interest in the recognition of integrated 'third space' practitioners who work across professional and academic boundaries.

Acknowledgements

This conference would not have been possible without significant contributions from:

Keynote, panel discussion and plenary sessions

Dr Nienke Alberts, Senior Research Associate, University of Bristol

Professor Peter Felten, Executive Director of the Center for Engaged Learning, Professor of History, and Assistant Provost for Teaching and Learning at Elon University, North Carolina, USA

Professor Sally Kift, PFHEA, FAAL, ALTF, Higher Education Consultant, President, Australian Learning and Teaching Fellows (ALTF), Vice Chancellor's Strategic Fellow, Victoria University, and Honorary Professor: University of Southern Queensland

Dave Lochtie, Operations Manager, Ann Craft Trust

Dr Catherine Mann, Associate Director, Academic Mentoring, University of Melbourne, Australia

Dr Cat Picton, SFHEA, Student Success and Development Coordinator, University of the Sunshine Coast, Queensland, Australia

Dr Alison Raby, SFHEA, Senior Lecturer and Senior Tutor, University of Lincoln **Andrew Stork**, SFHEA, Programme Director for the Postgraduate Certificate in Medical Education, University of Sheffield

Parallel sessions

Dr Saad Arif, FHEA, and **Dr Deborah Pearce**, SFHEA, Oxford Brookes University **Dr Shelley Beck**, FHEA, and **Deborah Carpenter**, FHEA, Oxford Brookes University **Catherine Black**, Oxford Brookes University

Dr Dan Butcher, SFHEA, **Sue Jennings**, FHEA, **Helen Foord-Warren**, FHEA, **Gerry Sheppard**, and **Mary Lacy**, FHEA, Oxford Brookes University

Sue Chilton, SFHEA, Oxford Brookes University

Dr Diana (Dee) Clayton, SFHEA, and **Dr Anna Klenert**, FHEA, Oxford Brookes University **Dr Gary Jones**, SFHEA, University of Winchester, **Associate Professor Helen Tidy**, SFHEA, and **Dr Joanne Irving-Walton**, PFHEA, Teesside University

Dr Satomi Kimino, SFHEA, University of Hull

Dr Mary Kitchener, SFHEA, and Gillian Kelly, Oxford Brookes University

Dr Matt Lawson, FHEA, Oxford Brookes University

Kate Maguire, FHEA, Oxford Brookes University

Associate Professor Margaret Mbindyo, Millersville University, Pennsylvania, USA

Dr Elizabeth Munro, SFHEA, University of Winchester

Dr Laura Novo de Azevedo, FHEA, Lindsey Harrison, Dr Blanca Rodriguez Beltran, and Dr Mary Kitchener, SFHEA, Oxford Brookes University

Dr Michelle Reid, SFHEA, Oxford Brookes University

Dr Charlie Simpson, SFHEA, Oxford Brookes University

Dr Jessica Versfeld, HPCSA, University of Pretoria, and **Associate Professor Curwyn Mapaling**, University of Johannesburg, South Africa

Dr Juan Wang, FHEA, and Dr Tangming Yuan, SFHEA, University of York

Organising committee

Eleanor Bartlett, School of Psychology, Social Work and Public Health

Junean Cramp, Oxford Brookes Business School

Liz Drewett, Web and Communications Officer, Oxford Centre for Academic Enhancement and Development

Loredana Faraon, Operations Manager, Marketing, Recruitment and Engagement

Claire Jones, SFHEA, Oxford Brookes Business School

Victoria Pratt, FHEA, School of Education

With gratitude and our very best wishes.

Ben Walker and Adrian Wallbank